
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

FFeebbrruuaarryy  77,,  22002222  
  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for January 3 & 24, 2022 & Closed Session Minutes for 
December 6, 2021. 
See attachment. *Note:  The minutes will be at the end of the of the Agenda Package 
document. 

 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 

See attachment. 
 
c) Emergency Management Mutual Aid Agreement 

See attachment. 
 

d) Proclamation 2022-004 50th Anniversary of the Senior Nutrition Program 
 See attachment. 
 There is also an invitation for the Commissioner’s to participate in the Meals on Wheels 

for March. 
 
e) Proclamation 2022-005 Black History Month 
 See attachment. 

 
 

 





























Invitation to Commissioners: 
 
 I am extending an invitation to each commissioner to participate in the delivery of meals during the 
annual March for Meals Community Champion week,   March 21st - March 25th , 2022.  If they would like 
to participate, they can email me at lrollinson@accog.org or call at 252-404-7091 to schedule their date and 
route.  We are currently delivering meals on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays.  Meals are picked up at 
10:45am and each route takes about an hour to complete.  
  
Thank you in advance for the boards consideration and your assistance of signing the proclamation and 
participating in this year's March for Meals campaign.  Please reach out to me should you have any 
questions.   
 
 
 
Best regards,  
 
Laura Rollinson 
Administrative & Volunteer Coordinator 
Albemarle Commission Senior Nutrition Program 
512 S Church Street 
Hertford, NC  27944 
(252)404-7091 P 
(252)426-7649 F 
lrollinson@accog.org 

mailto:lrollinson@accog.org
mailto:lrollinson@accog.org


 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

FAX (252) 793-1183 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 

 
PROCLAMATION 2022-004 

 

50TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE NATIONAL  
SENIOR NUTRITION PROGRAM, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, Since 1972, the National Senior Nutrition Program has funded local agencies and 

organizations to serve home-delivered and congregate meals that help to ensure older adults 
have opportunities to stay healthy, independent, and connected; and  

WHEREAS, more than 10 million older Americans face hunger and isolation each year; and 

WHEREAS, local senior nutrition programs help older adults access healthy foods; nutrition 
screening, education, and counseling; social opportunities; and other supports that encourage 
well-being; and 

WHEREAS, the Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging Senior Nutrition Program is 
an integral part of Washington County – providing sustenance and so much more to our older 
community members, especially those most vulnerable to hunger, chronic health concerns, 
isolation and 

WHEREAS, the Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging Senior Nutrition Program is 
having a positive impact on our community and its senior population. 

 

NOW THEREFOR, Washington County does hereby proclaim March 2022 to be the 50th 
anniversary of the National Senior Nutrition Program. We urge every resident to recognize older 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 Page 2 of 2  

adults and the people who support them through nutrition services as essential contributors to 
the strength of our community. 
 

PROCLAIMED this the 7th day of February, 2022. 
 
 
 
 

Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 

ATTEST:    
Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2022-005  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

PROCLAMATION 2022-005 

  
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

 

WHEREAS, much of Washington County’s honor, strength and stature can be attributed 
to the diversity of cultures and traditions that are celebrated by the residents of this great region; 
and 

WHEREAS, African Americans have played significant roles in the history of North Carolina 
State's economic, cultural, spiritual and political development while working tirelessly to maintain 
and promote their culture and history; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of their determination, hard work, intelligence and perseverance, 
African Americans have made valuable and lasting contributions to our state, achieving 
exceptional success in all aspects of society including business, education, politics, science, and 
the arts; and 

WHEREAS, in 1976, Black History Month was formally adopted to honor and affirm the 
importance of Black History throughout our American experience, which goes back thousands 
of years and includes some of the greatest, most advanced and innovative societies in our history 
that we can all draw inspiration from; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month is a time for all Americans to remember the stories and 
teachings of those who helped build our nation, took a stance against prejudice to build lives of 
dignity and opportunity, advanced the cause of civil rights, and strengthened families and 
communities; and 

WHEREAS, during Black History Month all Americans are encouraged to reflect on past 
successes and challenges of African Americans and look to the future to continue to improve 
society so that we live up to the ideals of freedom, equality and justice; 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-005  Page 2 of 2 

 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of County Commissioners do hereby 
proclaim the month of February 2022 to be 

BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

in Washington County. The Board encourages all residents to join them in honoring the many 
contributions made by African Americans throughout this region and to participate in the many 
educational events honoring the contributions of Black Americans. 

PROCLAIMED this the 7th day of February, 2022. 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM AND/OR 

PUBLIC HEARING DURING  
COVID-19 AT THE FEBRUARY 7, 2022 WASHINGTON 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-

19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions. The February 7, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting will take place at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC in the 
Commissioners’ Room and be live streamed on the County’s Facebook Page. Please 
review the following information carefully regarding alternative ways to access or 
participate in this, or any other public hearing, or any public comment portion of the 
regular meeting. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, or during any 

advertised public hearing portion of the meeting, you may attend the meeting in 
person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 116 Adams Street before 6:00 PM to 
sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least three feet of 
distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other applicable 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please come 
prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the meeting 
room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the meeting 
room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable regulations and 
guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which will be live 
streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a recording of the 
full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for at least 48 hours 
after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, February 7, 2022 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the 
February 7, 2022 meeting. 

 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:      Public Hearing (Recessed): Re-written Land Use Plan, Mr. Allen 

Pittman, Planning/Inspections Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
There will be a recessed Public Hearing regarding the recommendation from the 
Washington County Planning Board to adopt the re-written Land Use Plan according to 
NCGS § 160D-501 (a) and (c).  
  
This public hearing began at the January 7, 2022 Board of Commissioners meeting; 
however, the Commissioners needed more time to look over the re-written Land Use Plan 
and recessed the public hearing before making any decision whether or not to adopt it. 
 
The re-written Land Use Plan is attached.  
 
 
 
 
 



The Planning Board recommended on October 21, 2021 to approve The Washington County Land Use 

Plan. 

It was also recommended that a public hearing be held on December 6, 2021 (which was changed to 

January 3, 2022.

For reference, the NCGS 160D-501 explains the necessity of updating the Land Use Plan.  Please see the 

attachment.



 

G.S. 160D-501 Page 1 

Article 5. 
Planning. 

§ 160D-501.  Plans. 

(a) Requirements for Zoning. – As a condition of adopting and applying zoning 
regulations under this Chapter, a local government shall adopt and reasonably maintain a 
comprehensive plan or land-use plan. 

(a1) Plans. – A comprehensive plan sets forth goals, policies, and programs intended to 
guide the present and future physical, social, and economic development of the jurisdiction. A 
land-use plan uses text and maps to designate the future use or reuse of land. A comprehensive 
or land-use plan is intended to guide coordinated, efficient, and orderly development within the 
planning and development regulation jurisdiction based on an analysis of present and future 
needs. 

Planning analysis may address inventories of existing conditions and assess future trends 
regarding demographics and economic, environmental, and cultural factors. The planning 
process shall include opportunities for citizen engagement in plan preparation and adoption. 

A local government may prepare and adopt other plans as deemed appropriate. This may 
include, but is not limited to, small area plans, neighborhood plans, hazard mitigation plans, 
transportation plans, housing plans, and recreation and open space plans. 

(b) Comprehensive Plan Contents. – A comprehensive plan may, among other topics, 
address any of the following as determined by the local government: 

(1) Issues and opportunities facing the local government, including consideration 
of trends, values expressed by citizens, community vision, and guiding 
principles for growth and development. 

(2) The pattern of desired growth and development and civic design, including 
the location, distribution, and characteristics of future land uses, urban form, 
utilities, and transportation networks. 

(3) Employment opportunities, economic development, and community 
development. 

(4) Acceptable levels of public services and infrastructure to support 
development, including water, waste disposal, utilities, emergency services, 
transportation, education, recreation, community facilities, and other public 
services, including plans and policies for provision of and financing for public 
infrastructure. 

(5) Housing with a range of types and affordability to accommodate persons and 
households of all types and income levels. 

(6) Recreation and open spaces. 
(7) Mitigation of natural hazards such as flooding, winds, wildfires, and unstable 

lands. 
(8) Protection of the environment and natural resources, including agricultural 

resources, mineral resources, and water and air quality. 
(9) Protection of significant architectural, scenic, cultural, historical, or 

archaeological resources. 
(10) Analysis and evaluation of implementation measures, including regulations, 

public investments, and educational programs. 
(c) Adoption and Effect of Plans. – Plans shall be adopted by the governing board with 

the advice and consultation of the planning board. Adoption and amendment of a comprehensive 
or land-use plan is a legislative decision and shall follow the process mandated for zoning text 
amendments set by G.S. 160D-601. Plans adopted under this Chapter may be undertaken and 
adopted as part of or in conjunction with plans required under other statutes, including, but not 



 

G.S. 160D-501 Page 2 

limited to, the plans required by G.S. 113A-110. Plans adopted under this Chapter shall be 
advisory in nature without independent regulatory effect. Plans adopted under this Chapter do 
not expand, diminish, or alter the scope of authority for development regulations adopted under 
this Chapter. Plans adopted under this Chapter shall be considered by the planning board and 
governing board when considering proposed amendments to zoning regulations as required by 
G.S. 160D-604 and G.S. 160D-605. 

If a plan is deemed amended by G.S. 160D-605 by virtue of adoption of a zoning amendment 
that is inconsistent with the plan, that amendment shall be noted in the plan. However, if the plan 
is one that requires review and approval subject to G.S. 113A-110, the plan amendment shall not 
be effective until that review and approval is completed.  (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 
2020-25, ss. 11, 51(a), (b), (d).) 



1 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

PURPOSE OF THE PLAN 

An up-to-date Land Use Plan is important because although Washington County is continuing to lose 
population, the number of residential units in the County continues to grow. Because the County faces 
many environmental considerations that impact growth and development, wise development of the 
land is imperative to future success. Additionally, developing a Land Use Plan ensures development 
occurs in a manner that is consistent with the preservation of the County’s resources and protection of 
the natural landscape. Also, in preparing a Land Use Plan, the County considers increased resource and 
infrastructure demands that could result from an influx of visitors, residents, and businesses entering 
the County as a result of transportation projects like the Highway 64 corridor or from the 
waterfront/waterside development rapidly occurring along the shores of the Albemarle Sound and its 
tributaries. The overall purpose of the Land Use Plan is to encourage the development of a safe, healthy, 
and economically sound living environment for the citizens of the County. 



2 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

 



3 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

 



4 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

 



5 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

Soil Characteristics 

 According to State data, the following soil types are found in Washington County:  

• Altavista (AaA)-fine sandy loam 0-2 percent slopes 

 • Arapahoe (Ap)-fine sandy loam  

• Argent (Ar) –silt loam  

• Augusta (At)-a fine sandy loam  

• Belhaven muck (Ba) 

 • Bojac (BoA)- loamy fine sand 0-3 percent slopes 

 • Cape Fear loam (Cf)  

• Conaby (Co)  

• Conetoe (CtA)-loamy fine sand 0-3 percent slopes  

• Dogue (DgA) fine sandy loam 0-3 percent slopes  

• Dorovan muck (Do) 

 • Dorovan mucky (Dr)-silt loam overwash  

• Dragston (Ds)-loamy fine sand  

• Fortescue (Fo)- mucky loam  

• Hyde (Hy)- silt loam  

• Muckalee loam (Me)  

• Pettigrew muck (Pe)  

• Ponzer muck (Po)  

• PoPortsmouth (Pt)-fine sandy loam 

 • Pungo muck (Pu) 

 • Roanoke loam (Ro)  

• Roper muck (Rp)  

• Scuppernong muck (Se)  

• Tarboro sand (TaB) – 0-3 percent slopes  

• Tomotley fine sandy loam (To)  

• Wahee fine sandy loam (Wa)  

• Wasda muck (Wd)  

• Wickham (WkB)- loamy sand 0-4 percent slopes  



6 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

The “unsuitable soil types” are closer to 85%, leaving about 15% for conventional septic systems. There 
are a few areas in the county that have development (housing) potential, primarily along Long Ridge Rd. 
and small areas along NC Hwy 32 South, from Pea Ridge to the Beaufort County line with the rise and fall 
of sea level. The US Hwy 64 corridor, from a soil and on-site septic standpoint, is about 100% 
unsuitable.  The areas with public sewer do have development potential, due to sewer availability. These 
types of soils make for great agricultural lands.  These same soils are difficult and expensive to develop 
and live on for the same reason they make great farmland, low elevation with mostly wet, clay or 
organic natured soils.  Washington County will never be a cheap or easy area to develop from a soils and 
landscape perspective. That being said, Washington County is a beautiful pastoral county with highlights 
of water bodies including the Roanoke River, Albemarle Sound, and Phelps Lake.  This is actually a 
benefit for certain types of small-scale development (housing and very light industry) but will still be 
limited by the availability of suitable soils or the availability of economical public sewer.  Large 
scale/industrial development will hinge only on public sewer availability or self-contained sewage 
treatment facilities. 



7   
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Co

un
ty

 L
an

d 
U

se
 P

la
n 

 

  



8 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

Water Quality Classifications Surface Water Classifications are designations applied to surface water 
bodies, such as streams, rivers and lakes, which define the best uses to be protected within these waters 
and carry with them an associated set of water quality standards to protect those uses. Surface water 
classifications are a tool used by state and federal agencies to manage and protect all streams, rivers, 
lakes, and other surface waters in North Carolina. Classifications and their associated protection rules 
may be designed to protect water quality, fish and wildlife, the free flowing nature of a stream or river, 
or other special characteristics. Surface water classifications are designated by measuring the amount of 
pollutants in the water and determining the sources for those pollutants. Water pollution is caused by a 
number of substances including sediment, nutrients, bacteria, oxygen-demanding wastes, and toxic 
substances such as heavy metals, chlorine, and pesticides. These pollutants are divided into two 
categories, point source and non-point source, both of which affect water quality in Washington County. 
Point source pollutants are discharges that enter surface waters through a pipe, ditch, or other well-
defined point of discharge and often include discharges from wastewater treatment plants or large 
urban and industrial storm water systems. Point source polluters in Washington County include the 
wastewater treatment plants (WWTPs) in the three municipalities. Non-point source pollution, unlike 
point source pollution, comes from many diffuse sources in nature and occurs at random intervals 
depending on rainfall frequency and intensity. Fecal coliform bacteria and nutrients are major pollutants 
associated with non-point source pollution. The land use activities in Washington County that contribute 
to non-point source pollution include crop production, animal feeding lots, failing septic systems, 
forestry, and runoff from roads, parking lots, and other urban areas. 

 

 Natural Hazard Areas 

 The current Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) indicates that flooding classification zones present in 
Washington County are limited to ‘A’, ‘X’, and ‘X-500’ flood zones. The zones under the ‘A’ classification 
are designated as areas that are subject to varying degrees of inundation by floodwaters with a 
frequency of a hundred (100) years. Washington County also contains ‘X’ flood zones that are areas that 
do not experience flooding, and ‘X-500’ flood zones that are areas that will experience inundation by 
flood waters during the five hundred (500) year storm event. These areas are deemed to contain 
minimal danger from flooding. The County has four (4) geographic areas/regions that are subject to 
hazardous flooding. These areas are as follows: (1) The Albemarle Sound Shoreline and adjoining 
wetlands, (2) Conaby Creek and adjoining wetlands, (3) Welch Creek and adjoining wetlands and (4) the 
Scuppernong River and adjoining wetlands. All development on land in identified flood hazard areas, 
including areas susceptible to sea level rise, is regulated by the County’s Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance which requires all new construction, and any structure substantially improved greater than 
fifty (50) percent of its assessed value, to be elevated above the established base flood elevation. 



9   
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Co

un
ty

 L
an

d 
U

se
 P

la
n 

 



10
 

  
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Co

un
ty

 L
an

d 
U

se
 P

la
n 

 

 



11 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

Storm Surge Areas  

Storm surge occurs during coastal storm events where local water body’s crest and floodwaters 
inundate surrounding property. Washington County has a significant storm surge problem along the 
banks of the Albemarle Sound shoreline. During storm events the main surge will occur at the base of 
existing rivers and streams and inundate surrounding property. Poor water absorption capabilities of the 
soil in the area exacerbate the problems, causing the flooding created by a storm surge to inundate 
larger portions of the County. Problems with flooding, storm surges, and poor soil percolation must be 
taken into consideration when determining areas for future development within the County to avoid 
unnecessary damage to property. 

 

 

Non-coastal Wetlands 

 Non-coastal wetlands refer to wetlands covered under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA). 
These include areas covered by freshwater or those that contain waterlogged soils for the majority of 
the growing season as well as those areas containing plants capable of surviving under limited oxygen 
conditions. Washington County is home to a variety of wetland communities. These include the 
following: bottomland hardwood, cleared bottomland hardwood, cleared depressional swamp forest, 
cleared hardwood flat, cleared headwater swamp, cleared pine flat, cleared pocosin, cleared riverine 
swamp forest, cutover bottomland hardwood, cutover depressional swamp forest, cutover hardwood 
flat, cutover headwater swamp, cutover pine flat, cutover pocosin, cutover riverine swamp forest, 
depressional swamp forest, drained bottomland hardwood, drained depressional swamp forest, drained 
hardwood flat, drained pine flat, drained pocosin, freshwater marsh, hardwood flat, headwater swamp, 
human impacted, managed pineland, pine flat, pocosin, and riverine swamp forest. According to state 
data, there are roughly 79,777 acres of wetlands in Washington County. About 145 acres have been 
classified as impacted by humans. About 20 percent, or 16,200 acres, are classified as managed pineland 
which confirms the large forestry industry presence in the County. 

 

Water supply 

 Watersheds  

No water supply watersheds exist within Washington County. 

 

 Ground Water Resources 

 As discussed in the Water Quality Classification section above, Washington County has three (3) river 
basin systems running through the region, specifically the Pasquotank, Roanoke, and Tar-Pamlico basins. 
There are four (4) basic ground water resources in Washington County: the Quaternary deposits, the 
Yorktown formation, the Pungo River formation, and the Castle Hayne limestone. Composed of sand-silt, 



12 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

clay, and shells the Quaternary deposits includes surface soils and the underlying sediments to depths 
ranging from approximately forty (40) feet in western Washington County to approximately two 
hundred (200) feet in the eastern part of the County. Many shallow wells in the County go no deeper 
that the quaternary sediment that is approximately forty (40) feet thick. The Yorktown formation is 
about one hundred fifty (150) feet thick in western Washington County and has various yields 
dependent on the size of the wells. The sand and limestone portion of the Yorktown is the principal 
source of water for the County. The Pungo formation is a marginal water supply, occurring at less than 
eighty (80) feet in the western part of the County. The Castle Hayne limestone aquifer is the most 
important water source in North Carolina. It is approximately one hundred (100) feet thick and curves at 
approximately one hundred fifty (150) feet below sea level in the County. At the boundary of Tyrell 
County, the depth of the top of the aquifer is approximately four hundred (400) feet. Yields of several 
hundred gallons per minute are readily obtainable from this water source and is used by many localities 
in the area. Plymouth has a Wellhead Protection Program (WHPP) that has been developed and 
approved for this public water system, enabling the public water system owners to broaden the 
protection of their public water supply wells. 



13
 

  
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Co

un
ty

 L
an

d 
U

se
 P

la
n 

 



14 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

 



15 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

RESIDENTIAL  

Residential/Agriculture (RA) The purpose of this land use category is to provide a designation to support 
agricultural and forestry uses, and other similar uses traditionally associated with an agrarian region. 
County land meeting the intent of this classification should be located in relatively isolated and 
undeveloped areas which would be the most appropriate for the future development of large lot, single 
family detached residences. Residential development densities within this category range from 1 to 2 
dwelling units per net developable acre and are areas where densities do not require the provision of 
urban type services. Conventional lot sizes in this land use designation range from 20,000 SF to 30,000 
SF, depending upon the net development area ratios for particular subdivision projects.  

Low Density Residential (LDR) This land use category is designed to provide for an environment of low 
density single family detached residential structures. This land use is promoted in areas with significant 
environmental constraints and where water and/or sewer service does not exist nor be easily extended. 
The net housing density within the district ranges from 1 to 2 units per net developable acre with a 
minimum lot size of 20,000 SF.  

Medium Density Residential (MDR) Land areas carrying this designation are planned for single family 
detached residences developed at a moderate density in the range of 2 to 4 dwelling units per net 
developable acre, with conventional lot sizes of 12,000 SF to 20,000 SF. Water and sewer services are 
provided or could easily be extended in the future. Clustering is encouraged where feasible to achieve 
greater land use efficiencies and environmental protection. 

 High Density Residential (HDR) This land use category provides a designation for both attached 
residential and multifamily housing including duplexes, triplexes, apartments, and retirement housing at 
a density in the range of 6 to 8 units per net developable acre. This residential land use category will 
afford the community another valuable means of providing additional affordable housing opportunities 
to its residents. The County should specifically focus efforts on retirement housing given current market 
demands and the potential for revenue generation. These lands are the most developed and urban 
residential areas and have in place, or are scheduled to have in place, public services including water, 
sewer, recreational facilities, public roads, and police and fire protection. 

  

COMMERCIAL 

 Corridor Commercial (CC) The Corridor Commercial land use category will designate land areas on 
heavily traveled County collectors and arterial streets, characterized principally by adjoining commercial 
and service uses. This category is intended to be applied to existing, stable retail areas, including 
commercial and neighborhood shopping centers located along the major entry corridors, as well as to 
areas suitable for future commercial development. This category will be applied mostly to highway 
commercial uses including convenient stores, country stores, auto-related uses, motels, restaurants and 
tourism retail uses. This designation should in no way encourage “strip” style development patterns. 
Land use tools such as shared driveways, limited curb cuts, etc. will prevent strip style development 
patterns from occurring.  



16 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

INDUSTRIAL Light Industrial (I-1) This land use category is intended to include light industrial uses 
including light assembly and manufacturing centers and distribution and warehousing facilities. The 
intent of this category is to accommodate limited industrial uses in a well-planned setting where primary 
functions are to be conducted within completely enclosed buildings and where exterior storage 
operations are highly regulated. Site planning should emphasize high quality design standards. No use 
should be permitted within those land areas which might be harmful to the adjoining land uses and the 
residential ambience of the adjacent neighborhoods.  

Heavy Industrial (I-2) The Heavy Industry category is primarily intended to address those existing 
industries which have potentially hazardous impacts on the community and to provide enhanced 
guidelines for the continuation and/or expansion of such uses. Limited opportunities for heavy industrial 
expansion exist in select areas where the use could be adequately 134 buffered from adjacent users and 
traffic demands could reasonably be supported with adequate levels of service (specifically designated 
industrial parks).  



17
 

  
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Co

un
ty

 L
an

d 
U

se
 P

la
n 

 

  



18 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

GUIDE FOR LAND USE DECISION-MAKING 

 The land use policies will aid all members of the community in making local decisions regarding land use 
and development. Community members can look to the plan to obtain a better understanding of 
development proposals and property owners specifically can learn about the capabilities and limitations 
of their land. If developers look to the policies to determine the types of land uses and development 
desired by the community, they can design their development proposals accordingly, increasing their 
chances for approval. Planning staff will use the policies to review development proposals and form 
recommendations to their respective planning boards and elected officials. Finally, planning boards and 
elected officials, taking into consideration staff recommendations, will use the policies to make 
individual determinations of the consistency of development proposals with the land use plan policies. 

 EXISTING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM  

Ordinances  

• Zoning Ordinance-This Ordinance is intended to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
public and to implement the County’s adopted Land Use Plan for the orderly and controlled 
development of the County.  

• Subdivision Ordinance-This Ordinance establishes procedures and standards for the development and 
subdivision of land within the limits of the jurisdiction of Washington County.  

• Mobile Home and Travel Trailer Park Ordinance – This Ordinance regulates the planning and 
construction of mobile home and travel trailer parks throughout the County and is enforced by the 
County Building Inspector.  

• Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance-This Ordinance regulates development within identified flood 
zones to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions. And is enforced by the Director of 
Planning and Inspections for the County;  

• State Building and Electrical Codes – This code is in conformance to County and State regulations. The 
County has implemented a permitting system to ensure that all structures built within the region are 
compliant with State requirements;  

 

 

Regulations  

• Laws and Rules for Ground Absorption Sewage Disposal Systems – These regulations control the use of 
specified sanitary sewage disposal systems in the County. The regulations are administered by the 
Washington County Health Department;  

• Signage Regulations- This article regulates the size, location, height, and construction of signs in 
Washington County.  

 

 



19 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

State Plans:  

• Transportation Improvement Program 2020-2029– Prepared by the NC Department of Transportation, 
this document outlines the statewide schedule of road improvements to be completed by 2029. 
Washington County is included in the Division 1 section of the report. 

 • CAMA Permitting Process – The CAMA permitting process is enforced by the DCM. CAMA regulates 
development within designated areas of environmental concern.  

Federal Regulations:  

• Section 404 Wetland Regulations – The County recognizes the importance of protecting 
environmentally sensitive areas, which includes those lands designated as wetlands by the US Army 
Corps of Engineers. It is the policy of the County that all development within these areas conform to 
federal, state, and local regulations and ordinances regarding development. 

 

TOOLS  

The following section provides a summary of the necessary steps that Washington County must make to 
achieve its goals and objectives. It should be noted that many policies are ongoing and the full extent of 
the County’s efforts can only be realized by a thorough review. New ordinances to create:  

• Amend zoning ordinance to attract business and encourage growth.  

• Continue to review and update the County’s Floodplain Management Ordinance for ways to increase 
the County’s Community Rating System (CRS) score. 

 

 Needed updates: 

• Database of existing structures within the flood zone 

• Database of flooding and causes 

 

 

 

 

Most importantly, the Planning Board should establish pre-determined times throughout the plan 
timeframe to review the Action Plan to evaluate progress. The Planning Board should add to and edit 
the Action Plan as well as other elements of the Land Use Plan as necessary to produce the most 
effective ‘roadmap’ for growth and development in Washington County over the next 5 years. 

 

 



20 
 

 Washington County Land Use Plan 

 

 

Goals and Plan of Action 

Study existing ordinances to find most effective way to provide for the growth in the county. 

 

Maintain drainage system. 

• Follow-up with DOT about maintenance of right of way drainage 
• Work with property owners to find ways to maintain drainage flow from property 

 

 

Flooding 

• Research flooding in eastern part of county and make recommendations for funding 
and/or solutions 

• Meet with stakeholders in flooding areas to discuss issues 

 

Protect natural resources 

• Follow best management practices (BMP) for development 
• Provide screening and buffers for wildlife and run off drainage in future development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update:  Department of Social Services (DSS), 

Mr. Clifton Hardison, DSS Director and Ms. Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy 
Director 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This is a new item added to the monthly agenda.  Each month a different Department 
Head will be asked to come and speak to the Commissioners about the work going on in 
their area.  For the February 7, 2022 meeting, Mr. Clifton Hardison and Ms. Lynn Swett 
will give a presentation on what’s going on in DSS. 
 
See attached presentation. 
 
 
 
 



DSS  
BY PROGRAM

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY

http://2014.igem.org/Team:XMU-China/PP_Overview
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/




FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES

• FNS program provides a supplemental resource to eligible applicants for the purchase of food items.

• This program currently serves 1,797 households in Washington County

• Has provided Food and Nutrition benefits in the amount of $4,793,624 since July 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.   

• We have six (6) Income Maintenance caseworker IIs to manage this caseload, one Income Maintenance 
Caseworker III (lead worker) for troubleshooting and second party reviews, and one Income Mainteance
Supervisor II.

• This program is reviewed every three years by the State of North Carolina through a Management and 
Evaluation Review, as well as reviews through the single county audit, and monthly reviews by the State on 
timeliness and accuracy of case processing (we are currently at 100% in timeliness and accuracy).  



CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE 

• Subsidized Child Care provides Child Care payments to providers on behalf of qualified applicants. 

• The program currently provides assistance for 150 children, with 60 children on the waiting list.  

• Child Care providers, both local and out of county have received payments on behalf of these children 
in the amount of $458,469 from July 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

• We have one Income Maintenance Caseworker II that manages child care, and a backup worker 
trained.

• This program is supervised by the FNS Supervisor.

• This program is monitored by the Division of Childhood Development and Early Education 



LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
(LIHEAP)

• This program provides a monetary assistance payment to those eligible for funds to be paid 
directly to the heating vendor.  

• During FY 20-21 we processed applications and payments to LIHEAP in the amount of 
$194,097.

• As of January 31, 2022 we have processed applications and payments for LIHEAP in the 
amount of $113,400.

• We have two (2) primary workers and nine (9) secondary workers processing applications for 
this program.  All workers have other programs for which they are responsible outside of 
LIHEAP application responsibilities.  

• This program is supervised by the FNS Supervisor



CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT 

• The Child Support program has the responsibility of locating non-custodial parents, establishing paternity for 
children born out of wedlock, establishing child support orders for those who seek child support, and enforcing 
orders when the non-custodial parent is out of compliance with the child support order.

• This office also manages Child Support for Tyrrell County.

• Currently Child Support manages 1,167 cases for Washington County

• Paternity has been established for 41 children born out of wedlock from July 2021 to December 31, 2021 in 
Washington County.

• $740,326 has been collected in child support through December 31, 2021 for clients in Washington County.

• There are four (4) Child Support Agent IIs and one Child Support Supervisor I in this unit.



RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT

• RiverlightTransit staff consists of five (5) drivers, one transportation coordinator and one 
supervisor.  

• The fleet consists of one minivan, two non-lift LTV buses and five wheelchair lift equipped 
LTV buses. 

• Riverlight has transported 507 riders from Washington County from July 1, 2021 to 
December 31, 2021.  With FTA COVID restrictions, the transit system is limited on the 
number of riders plus driver allowed on a vehicle.  

• Medicaid Transportation is a mandated service required of Social Services on behalf of the 
county.  



ADULT SERVICES 

• This unit is comprised of five (5) Social Worker II, two (2) Social Worker III, and a Social Work 
Supervisor III.  

• The Community Alternatives for Disabled Adults program is Case Managed by two of the 
SWIIs, ensuring that those disabled adults that choose to live at home have the resources 
they need to do so.  Currently we have 52 adults for which these workers manage.

• Calls regarding alleged abuse, neglect or exploitation of an adult are investigated by the two 
SWIIIs in this unit.  From July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 these social workers have 
managed 57 cases from such reports.

• Adults with In-Home Aide Assistance,  Adults who are Wards of the County,  and adults for 
whom we are protective payees of their funds are managed by the social workers of this unit 
as well.



ADULT SERVICES CON’T 

• Dominion Power’s Energy Share Program, Crisis Intervention Program (CIP), Low 
Income Household Water Assistance Program(LIHWAP), Work First Employment 
Services, Emergency Assistance, Low Income Household Energy Assistance (LIHEAP), 
Work First Cash Assistance and Emergency Relief Program are also managed by the SW 
IIs of this unit.

• All of these programs are supervised by the Adult Services Supervisor except LIHEAP.

• During the month of December through the LIHWAP we assisted citizens in the County 
with $17,858 towards their outstanding water bills to avoid disconnection of services.

• Crisis Intervention Program services paid vendors $12,265 from July 1 to December 31, 
2021 to keep families out of crisis. 



CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES

• This unit is comprised of three Social Worker Investigative Assessment and Treatment 
staff, and one Social Work Supervisor III

• This unit has received 51 reports of suspected abuse, neglect or dependency of children 
in Washington County from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

• As a result of reports to the agency, there are 37 children involved in open investigations 
and/or assessments. 

• The outcomes of these investigations or assessments could result in additional services 
being rendered to the family, or may involve a petition for custody being filed by the 
county to insure the safety of the children.



PERMANENCY PLANNING 

• This unit currently has two Social Worker IIIs and one Social Work Supervisor III

• We are managing care for 27 youths.  There are 23 children in our legal custody, and 4 foster 
young adults (18-21) that require monthly face to face contact, as well as case management and 
treatment.

• The youth we manage are spread throughout North Carolina.  

• The agency remains responsible for the complete care of these children under age 18, which 
includes cost of care, medical appointments, family meetings to work on reunification, therapy 
appointments, and clothing/school needs.

• The 18-21 year old program provides case management and transition training to adulthood to 
those that participate.



ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT

• This unit is comprised of two (2) Information Processing Technicians, two (2) Processing Assistant Vs, 
one housekeeper, one Information Technology Administrator, one Income Maintenance Caseworker III, 
one Paralegal and the Human Services Deputy Director.

• The Information Processing Technicians are responsible for the processing of all financial payments and 
the reimbursement processing for all grants, contracts, and state 1571.

• Day to day operational support, building maintenance and supplies are managed by this unit.

• All technology, including technological infrastructure is managed by the Information Technology 
Administrator for a staff of 58.  This includes compliance requirements by DHHS for security of data 
and confidentiality. 



ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT CON’T

• Based on the 2021 Detail Expenditure Year Analysis report from Edmonds, last fiscal year the agency processed 
expenditure obligations in the amount of $4,085,747.08.

• Revenues reported in Edmonds for FY 20-2021 totaling $3,078,863.22.

• This would produce a 75% reimbursement rate for FY 20-21.  Total county cost for DSS operations for that fiscal 
year was $1,006,883.86.

• In addition to finances, the administrative unit provides paralegal support to the agency in HR functions,  Adult 
Protective Services Unit, the Child Support Unit, Child Protective Services Unit and the Permanency Planning Unit.

• The Income Maintenance Caseworker III in this unit provides Quality Control Reviews of the eligibility programs, 
which determines training needs for those programs based on patterns of performance that are noted on review of 
case samples.



MEDICAID UNIT

• This unit is comprised of seven (7) Income Maintenance Caseworker IIs, two (2) Income Maintenance 
Caseworker IIIs, one Program Integrity worker, and one Income Maintenance Supervisor II.

• This unit manages Medicaid cases for 4,278 persons in Washington County.  These cases consist of Adult 
Medicaid, Long Term Care Medicaid and Medicaid for Families and Children.  

• 269 applications have been processed by this staff from July 1, 2021 through December 31,2021.

• Medicaid cases are reviewed every six months or every 12 months, depending on the coverage.  This unit 
has reviewed 1,549 cases during the period of July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021.  

• Total Medicaid claims paid out for Washington County Medicaid recipients was $31 Million Dollars for FY 
20-2021.  Providers in Washington County during FY 20-2021 were paid $14,610,401 of that $31 Million. 
**These figures are subject to increase, as providers have 18 months to which they can file claims.



MEDICAID AUDIT PRESENTATION

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-ND

http://www.campbellpropertymanagement.com/blog/2015/08/31/understanding-community-association-audit-fees/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nd/3.0/


MEDICAID AUDITS
REDA

• Medicaid is audited by the State of North Carolina Medicaid Compliance through the Recipient 
Eligibility Determination Audit (REDA).

• Cycle 2 of the REDA case audits reviewed Washington County records February, 2020 to 
February, 2021.  The letter from DHHS concluded the REDA findings and results on May 13, 2021.

• The REDA audit only reviews Applications taken by the county.  

• Results letter of the REDA audit is indicated on the following slide.

• Any area of deficiency noted on the results will be re-audited by the REDA team with a 
requirement that the county must pass three months consecutively.  



REDA RESULTS LETTER

The NC DHHS Division of Health Benefits, Office of Compliance and Program Integrity (OCPI), has completed the Calendar Year 2020
Recipient Eligibility Determination Audit (REDA) for Cycle 2 counties. The NC Medicaid accuracy standard for eligibility approval and 
denial/termination actions is 96.8%, with a 90% accuracy standard for technical errors that do not change the outcome of 
the eligibility determination.

As a result of the REDA Cycle 2 audit, Washington County’s annual accuracy rates in regards to the 200 cases pulled were as 
follows: 
Approval Actions 97% 
 Denial/Termination Actions 85.7% (5 errors for Improper Denials, 1 error for Reduction of Reserves, 1 error for Withdrawal, and 2 errors 

for Denial Prior to the 45th day/ 90th day.)
Technical Errors 96.4% 

Per session law 2017-57, if a county department of social services fails to meet the standards listed above, the State and the county 
department of social services are required to enter into a joint corrective action plan to improve accuracy when processing applications and 
redeterminations. 
Pursuant to Chapter 108A-25.1.A of the NC General Statutes, counties must reimburse the State for all Medicaid payments made for the 
ineligible recipient approved by the county. OCPI verified the actual paid claims associated with the identified ineligible recipients as listed 
below. 

Program Reference # Amount Medicaid xxxxx46 $365.69 TOTAL $365.69



MEDICAID AUDITS
SINGLE COUNTY AUDIT

FY 2020-2021

• Medicaid is also audited by the Single County Audit for Washington County,  along with programs such as Food and Nutrition 
Services, Work First Cash Assistance and LIHEAP.

• The Single County Audit for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 began June 25, 2021

• The results of the Single County Audit found that of 60 cases reviewed, 11 cases contained errors.  Of those 11case errors, all were 
technical errors, which means they do not effect the eligibility of the applicant, and therefore do not result in county paybacks. 

• The errors found ranged from 5 Household composition errors,  4 inadequate requests for information about the application in which 
online resources could have been utilized, 2 instances in which income was omitted or not used.  In comparison, the FY 2019-2020
audit findings indicated 3 instances where Household composition was incorrect, 5 instances where income was omitted or not used, 
and there were 3 errors that year regarding Child Support referrals, that are not repeated on this audit.

• A Corrective Action Plan was implemented as a result of these findings, and training was held to ensure that all staff were aware of 
the errors, and how to prevent such errors.  Further, with the implementation of a Quality Control Reviewer, more cases are second 
partied in the agency to help prevent such findings in the future.  All trainings were completed by December 31, 2021 with staff in the 
Medicaid Unit.



REQUEST FOR RECLASSIFICATION TO AVOID 
PERMANENCY PLANNING CRISIS

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND

https://www.aliem.com/2016/team-based-learning-2016-jgme-aliem-hot-topics-in-medical-education/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/


CURRENT STAFFING CRISIS WITH PERMANENCY PLANNING

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Number of Children 2021







 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Tax Collector’s Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator will give the Board the Tax Collector’s Report 
which she is required to do by statute.  
 
Please see attached. 
 
*Note:  Ms. Wilkins will be unable to be at the meeting.  Below are her notes explaining 
this year’s Tax Collector’s Report.  She would like the Board to make a motion to allow 
the Tax Administrator to advertise unpaid 2021 taxes that are liens on real property; 
pursuant to NCGS105-369(a). 
 
In accordance with NCGS 105-369(a) the following represents the total of unpaid 2021 
taxes that are liens on Real Property as of January 31, 2022 - $786,175.86.   
In accordance with NCGS 105-369 (b1) letters will be mailed the week of March 7th to 
notify the taxpayers of their delinquencies and that the delinquent taxes will be advertised 
in April.  
 
The letters will include the Debt Set-off information and the Notice of Lien 
Advertisement information (also referred to as the 2nd Notice letter).  The taxes have to be 
delinquent 60 days to send the Debt Set-off letter (the date of delinquency is January 6th) 
so the letters will be mailed in March. After we advertise the delinquent taxes in April, 
we can refer the 2021 delinquent amounts for foreclosure.   
 
Our Delinquent Tax Coordinator/Deputy Tax Collector, Darlene Harrison, has already 
started wage garnishments and bank attachments on the delinquent amounts.  These 
enforced collections can begin on the date of delinquency.   
  



Taxpayers are contacting our office to set up monthly payments.  We are setting up 
payment agreements to have the taxes paid by June 2022.  If they default on their 
monthly payment we will enforce collections through the wage garnishment, bank 
attachment or foreclosure.   
 
 
 
 



TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 
UNPAID 2021 TAXES THAT ARE LIENS ON REAL PROPERTY 

JANUARY 31, 2022 
 

 In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 105-369(a), the following 
represents the total of unpaid 2021 taxes that are liens on real property to date: 
 

$ 786,175.86 
 

     Sherri M. Wilkins    
     Sherri M. Wilkins 
     Tax Collector 
 
 
 
 The Washington County Tax Collector is ordered to advertise unpaid 2021 taxes 
that are liens on real property, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 105-369(a). 
 
     Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
  
     By:       
      Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
 
 
     Date:       
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
     



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Approval of FY2023 Budget Guidelines, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter discussed the FY2023 Budget Guidelines during the January 24, 2022 Budget 
Worksession; however, he would like to have the Board’s approval of these guidelines. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 
 



FY23 Budget Preparation Guidelines for the Budget Officer  Page 1 of 2 
 

FY23 Budget Preparation Guidelines 
For the Budget Officer  

From the Washington County Board of Commissioners: 
 

1. Formatting Guidelines: Present a balanced recommended budget to the Board of Commissioners 
using the same general format used to present recent budgets over the last few years including a 
consolidated budget book divided into sections, with budget requests and supporting info behind 
an itemization of each fund and/or department generally divided into three columns reflecting the 
originally requested allocation amount, Manager’s recommendation, and final Board allocation. 
 

2. General Guidelines: In balancing the overall budget, maintain compliance with applicable federal, 
state, and local laws including the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and 
Washington County Fund Balance Policy.  Generally attempt to achieve the following: 
 

a. Fully fund required annual allocations and/or full pro-rated portions of multi-year 
allocations, rather than deferring those allocations to future fiscal years. 
 

b. Develop and maximize available revenue sources and minimize unnecessary expenditures 
while meeting reasonably required expenses anticipated for the upcoming budget year, and 
recommend allocating reasonably sufficient funds to provide for anticipated future capital 
improvements and/or capital reserve expenses.  
 

c. Maintain the integrity of each separately designated fund including without limitation the 
proprietary/enterprise funds, and minimize unjustified and unnecessary inter-fund transfers 
between separately designated fund budgets. 

 
d. Limit the establishment of new services, or expansion of existing services, unless new 

revenue sources are identified to offset additional related expenses. 
 

3. Tax Guidelines: Limit any unnecessary or significant increases in the recommended ad-valorem 
or other tax rates unless otherwise directed by the Board and attempt to: 

 
a. Maintain the same 2%/July 1%/Aug early tax payment discount as the current fiscal year.   

 
b. Maintain the same .01 cent collected special watershed improvement tax (SWIT) revenue 

to fund countywide drainage related expenses as recommended by the County Drainage 
Advisory Board. 
 

c. Maintain the same .04 cents collected ad-valorem tax revenue for funding fire services 
pursuant to the County Fire Commission Ordinance and Commission recommendations. 
 

  



FY23 Budget Preparation Guidelines for the Budget Officer  Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Personnel Guidelines: For personnel budgeting purposes, attempt to: 
 

a. Avoid creating new positions unless funded by a specific new revenue source, unless the 
position was previously cut for expense reduction purposes and the benefits of its 
restoration are considered to outweigh the additional expenses. 
 

b. Identify and propose corrections for any major irregularities or inequities in the 
Washington County Salary Schedule & YORE Progressive Pay Plan, and evaluate the 
potential need for countywide adjustments to compensate for wage inflation factors.  
 

c. Pass through any premium increases for spousal/family benefits such as health, dental, 
vision, etc. to employees. 
 

5. Other Specific Board Guidance or Initial Requests from Individual Board Members:  
 

a. Continue developing a comprehensive capital improvement plan (CIP) to more 
proactively evaluate and budget for major future capital improvements and/or 
maintenance/reserve expenses. 
 

b. Develop an ARP spending plan designed to utilize ARP funding whenever possible and 
justified to cover major CIP items and priorities unless otherwise directed by the Board. 

 
c. Maintain the recurring annual allocation of $10,000 per year toward a future PARTF 

recreation grant match, and consider including the Senior Center and its outdoor facilities 
as part of future potential PARTF grant considerations. 

 
d. Continue allocating at least the full recommended annual contribution for the Washington 

County Hospital Pension Plan as recommended by the most recent actuarial report, and 
recommend ways to utilize budget allocations to proactively manage and address the 
growing future pension plan liability. 

 

 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

      __________________________________________ 

       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     July 6, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Senior Center Advisory Council 
 
The Senior Center Advisory Council is recommending to appoint two new members 
(replacing two that were no longer qualified). The Council recommended Ms. Sharon 
McNair and Mrs. Jean Spruill. 
 
Both have agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
Planning Board 
 
The Planning Board is recommending to re-appoint Ms. Bunny Sanders and Ms. Mary 
Barnes. 
 
Both have agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 























































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from January 2022 
 Statistics Reports from January 2022 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
February 7, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
The GIS/Mapping Department is doing fine. The following tasks were completed by the 
GIS/Mapping Department  

• Verified of property as recorded on deeds 
• Transfer of real property 
• Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 
• Assist the general public with maps and related needs 
• Managed correspondence via phone, email  
• Update property maps for the Tax Department  
• Update estate deeds  

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
Report from December, 2021: 
 
EMS STAFFING:   

Currently, there are no open Full Time EMS positions available.  The Transport Division has (1) 
EMT Basic Full Time position available and we are accepting part time applications for both 
divisions. We are experiencing some staffing difficulties due to having 3 employees requiring 
various amounts of FMLA time currently and through the end of January.   

Welcome to our two newest employees! 

 

Mr. Tyler Williams.  Tyler is a Washington County resident who has just completed the 
EMT Basic Course and has joined our Transport Division Full Time. 



 
 

 

 

Mr. Hunter Brickhouse.  Hunter is a Washington County resident who recently completed 
the EMT Basic Course and has joined our agency Part Time.  

EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 

PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 21 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  

We have experienced an increase in COVID-19 and Influenza-Like Illness calls since 
Thanksgiving.  We have not experienced any unusually long wait or turn-around times while 
transferring patients at the receiving hospitals.  

Thank you for your continued support of the Washington Tyrrell County EMS System.   

Report from January, 2022: 
 
EMS STAFFING:   

All Full Time EMS and Transport Positions are filled.  With that being said, staffing is still a 
daily struggle.  Currently our agency has 2 full time employees out on FMLA and an additional 6 
employees have been out over the past few weeks or are currently out with COVID or COVID-
like illnesses.  This works out to be approximately 1/3 of our staff being unable to work.  Deputy 
Director Ward and I have been working 1-3 days a week on a truck in addition to our 
administrative duties in an effort to work through this tough time.  FEMA is placing 
approximately 24 ambulances across North Carolina in an effort to assist agencies with severe 
staffing shortages and the inability to keep up with call volume increases.  Our agency is not in 
the threshold of despair to request this resource.  It’s difficult, but we are still SO much better off 
than several other agencies across the state. In the event this pattern of illness continues, before 
our agency begins to deteriorate, we will request resources as needed from the state.  

Welcome to our newest employee! 



 
 

 

 

Ms. Sidney Andrews filled the last open position in our Transport Division.  Ms. Andrews 
is from Beaufort County and serves her community as a volunteer Fire Fighter.  

EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 

PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 21 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  

 

The unit pictured above had been partially cleared when the picture was taken.  Two of the three 
stations we work out of do not have a closed in bay or covered area of any description to protect 
several of our largest investments.  More importantly, when experiencing winter storms, this 
causes a delay in response while our crews clear the unit.  The most notable recent storm brought 



 
 

 

5 inches of snow during the night time hours when we are not generally out checking on the units 
until a call for service is received.   

Thank you for your continued support of the Washington Tyrrell County EMS System.   

 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
We are good. Just started basketball games and getting our team right for EAC, SWAC, and 
State Games Tournaments.  We have not started playing Hyde or Columbia because of Covid 
19.  
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 
During this period the Veterans Service Officer assisted 5 veterans and dependents by telephone 
and office visits and processed the following services: 

• Ordered 2 discharge certificates for WWII veterans and 1 DD-214 with medical records. 
• Counseled 1 veteran with spouse concerning VA Home Loan Guarantee. 
• Submitted 1 informal and 1 formal compensation claim. 
• Furnished 1 funeral director with proper forms to request burial flags from the Post 

Office. 
• Had 2 visits from IT to check out the office computer. 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We are extremely busy.  We are receiving email requests, phone calls, fax requests 
and office visits for different information including information for tax bills, 
assessments, listings, exemptions. January 31 is the deadline for timely filing of 
personal property forms or requests for extensions.  Every day brings us numerous 
requests.   

2. Interest was added to the delinquent 2021 tax bills on January 6th. They are now 
delinquent, Darlene has already filed enforced collections on some delinquent 
accounts.   

3. Employer letters were mailed this month, this is a request to surrounding 
employers to receive a list of their employees.  When Darlene receives the lists, she 
checks to see if any of the employees have delinquent taxes so she can set up a 
wage garnishment.  Over 400 letters were mailed. 

4. We continue to collect payments for accounts that have been referred for 
foreclosure – every time we get a payment, receive correspondence (such as the 
need to add costs) or are notified in any way about a property in foreclosure we 
notify ZLS and update the accounts in foreclosure.  As information is received 
from Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) we update the accounts.  We also handle 
phone calls, emails or visits from persons whose property are in foreclosure and 
persons interested in buying property in foreclosure. 

5. Denise processed the Insolvents, Refunds and Releases reports. 
6. Denise processed the monthly reports from NCVTS.  
7. Denise researched estate files at the Clerk of Court’s office.  
8. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions.  
9. Darlene worked on ZLS information, on check requests to pay ZLS for fees/costs 

after we have received full payment on some properties.  
10. Staff continues to handle the calls regarding Republic Services (RS) and the 

taxpayers over trash cans, recycle bins, trash and debris pickup.   
11. Felesha Brown is working heavily with the personal property filings.  
12. I made a presentation to the Citizens Academy on January 18th.   



 
 

 

13. Darlene and I watched an Essential Records & Disaster Preparedness presentation.  
14. Darlene watched a Bankruptcy presentation. 

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued               26 

1. Inspections completed  28 
CO issued to Cahoon Pizza in Creswell and to Agape Healthcare in Plymouth 

2. Plan Reviews/Consultations   5 
There is some interest in constructing an RV Park on Breezy Banks Road 

3. Map Reviews     2 
4. Flood plain reviews with  

Soil and Water    2 
5. Worked in Bertie County    2 days 
6. Attended Electrical Code Workshop in Williamston for Con Ed    6th 
7. Resilience Committee Meeting – for CRS    26th 
8. Research request for Petting Zoo (Agri-tourism; referred to Rebecca and Jalynne) 
9. Public Safety Team Meeting 24th 
10. Planning Board Meeting 20th 

      Education:  Planning Board Basics from NCSOG 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
Soil and Water has been doing field visits for new and old state cost share contracts. I also been 
going out looking at canals to collect information to apply for the new sediment removal grant 
that is available thru department of agriculture 38 million. Also set up drainage meeting for Feb 
8.  Working on getting Eddie Smith special assessment district. Also attend annual soil and water 
conference in Durham. Been working with the town of Plymouth of removing over 12 dams and 
about 20 beavers.  

 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
  
Assistant Register of Deeds, Mrs. Brianne Sawyer has completed the basic Register of Deeds 
School held at the UNC School of Government and continues to perform her duties in an 
outstanding manner. 
All other information is “Business as usual”. 



 
 

 

Death Certificates in the county we note the following: 
Certificates with COVD-19 either as the primary cause or attributing factor = 22 
Period from Jan 1, 2021 through Dec 31, 2021 
Total Death Certificates Recorded for 2021 = 165 
Total Birth Certificates Recorded for 2021 = 0 
Total Marriage Certificates Recorded for 2021 = 59 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
No report submitted. 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 
 

1. Replaced 1 runway light. 
2. Still working on cleaning fuel farm tanks with cleaning solution and pressure washer. 

Would like to put coat of aluminum paint to keep from rusting. 
3. Converted all lights in terminal to LED. Long term savings on electric consumption.   
4. No update on having trees removed in RPZ approaches. 
5. Working on yearly service maintenance items for New Holland tractor (changing oil, 

filters etc.) also on Kubota mower and Woods mower.  
6. We had installed cable on east side of airport to keep out four wheelers, etc. from 

entering airport property (safety issues). Have repaired cable and put safety flags on the 
cable. 

7. We are working on landscaping to help with wear and tear on airport equipment.  



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Installed light bulbs and balances at DSS. 

2. Housekeeping staff went over to DSS to clean because their housekeeper was out sick. 

3. Clean steps and walk ways from the snow storm around all county buildings. 

4. Removed cabinets from the 4th floor to the Stotesberry Building. 

5. Installed vinyl at the Water Department in Roper. 

6. Helped Richard from CMO to installed new cameras throughout the building. 

7. Clean up leaves in front and behind of the Library building. 

8. Installed light bulbs in the Detention Center. 

9. Dust, sweep, mop, empty trash, vacuum, wash windows, clean and disinfect throughout 

the County buildings.  

10. Installed filters in Tax Office. 

 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
  
No surplus at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

Washington County Board of Social 
Services Regular Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, December 21, 2021 

Attendance 
 

• Board of Social Services: Julius Walker, Wendy Furlough and Harry White 
• Phone: Paulique Horton and Rona Norman 
• Staff: Clifton Hardison, Tammy Mixon, Cathy Ange and Lynn Swett 

Call to Order 
The monthly meeting of the Washington County Board of Social Services was held on Tuesday, 
December 21, 2021 at 9:00 AM. Mr. Walker, Chairman, called the meeting to order and 
welcomed everyone. 

Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 
Mr. Walker asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda. None were added. 

 
Public Comments None were given. 

Consent Agenda 
Harry White moved to approve the consent agenda that included the November 23, 2021 regular 
board meeting minutes. Ms. Furlough gave a second to the motion and the vote in favor of the 
motion was unanimous. 

 

Medicaid Presentation: 
Tammy Mixon presented the Medicaid presentation to the Board. The presentation is attached to 
the minutes. 

Director Informational Items 
 
Administration: We are fully staffed as of today. We had a resignation for retirement that 
came in last week. That job has been posted. 

 
Food and Nutrition Services: Food Stamp statistics were reviewed. 

 
Child Care: Child Care statistics were reviewed. We have started to pull some children off the 
waiting list. 

 
Medicaid: Medicaid and Program Integrity statistics were reviewed. 

 
Children Services: Child Protective Services and Foster Care statistics were reviewed. 
We have taken six other children into custody. 



 
 

 

 
Adult Services: Adult Services and Work First statistics were reviewed. Child Support: Child 
Support statistics were reviewed. 
 
Energy Program: Energy Programs were reviewed. Riverlight Transit: Riverlight Transit 
statistics were reviewed. 
 
Director’s PowerPoint presentation and spreadsheet reports are attached. 

 
Adjournment 
Mr. White made a motion to adjourn and Ms. Furlough gave a second to the motion. There being 
no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Walker adjourned the meeting. 

 
Respectively submitted,  
Julius Walker, Chairman 

Submitted by Cathy Ange 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 0 898 0 0 928 0 0 0 0 0 3498
Law Enforcement 655 640 683 703 2681

Animal Control 54 64 59 46 223
EMS 109 150 156 179 594

Reported Incidents 85 38 42 58 223
Total Arrests 23 5 8 14 50

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 6 8 18
Felony Arrests 20 4 2 6 32

Total Papers Served 24 37 37 32 130
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 5 13

Civil Papers Served 24 31 35 27 117
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 15 12 68
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 2 5

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 13 12 63
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 26 61
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 38 91

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 8 46 106

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

77%

6%

17%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

50

100

150

200

250

YTD TOTALS

223

18
32

13

117

5

63

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 31 30 44 44 48 0 0 0 0 0 306 306
Male 41 37 19 19 35 32 35 218
Female 7 1 9 7 5 9 10 48
Male 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 2
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 15
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 3 3 4 4 3 3 23 23
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

266

2

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

SMCP

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

94%

1%0%0%0%0%5%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 172 149 160 155 1084
WC Transported 90 122 109 120 102 113 115 771
WC Refusals 39 43 45 52 47 47 40 313

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 3 2 0 4 13
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 87 95 84 73 553
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 7 5 12 6 74
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 3 5 6 4 39

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 53 48 44 44 372
TC Transported 43 48 42 38 35 33 34 273
TC Refusals 19 17 14 15 13 11 10 99

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 5
HC Transported 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 5
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

26%

11%

13%

9%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   2,726.40$   1,225.00$   925.00$       2,115.00$   $25,389.90
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       75.00$         25.00$         25.00$         $450.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       375.00$       425.00$       75.00$         275.00$       $1,575.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             275.00$       $400.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $3,176.40 $1,650.00 $1,025.00 $2,690.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,834.90

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

91%

2% 6% 1%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 489 608 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2051
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 65 47 214
New Particpants 2 5 7
Center-Sponsored Events 100 212 255 567
Special Events 15 212 25 82 334
Caregiver's Support Group 5 4 4 13
Exercise Room 24 50 30 54 158
Dance Fitness 10 10
Yoga 32 20 10 32 94
Chair Exercise 90 114 54 54 312
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 35 30 141
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 18 20 95
Craft Room 40 36 30 106
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1394 1391 1466 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5469
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 402 502 1599
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 993 989 964 3870

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    147.00$   150.00$  -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  489.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     115.00$    90.00$     355.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     32.00$      60.00$     134.00$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

31%

18%
1%9%

0%
5%

17%

8%
0%

5%
6% 0%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      220,137.75$  319,977.93$  1,607,792.25$  
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        -$               -$               -$                   
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             371.79$         332.08$         1,544.52$          
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   178.95$         -$               6.05$                 
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        2,471.93$      3,646.45$      18,834.89$        
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              -$               -$               -$                   
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 1.12$             3.96$             18.42$               
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   2.13$             -$               -$                   
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        26,220.27$    34,340.45$    27,594.45$        
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               42.48$           100.26$         43.48$               
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          6,150.77$      6,105.60$      4,966.97$          
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             245.68$         284.16$         337.30$             
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 0.97$             0.49$             0.14$                 
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             242.68$         286.13$         406.99$             
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        1,167.95$      -$               -$                   
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          5,178.70$      2,225.01$      3,715.26$          

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     262,413.17$  367,302.52$  1,665,260.72$  -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  -$                                    

Initiated 10 10 32 16                   14
Amount 5,994.72$          7,438.51$          37,584.03$    9,785.57$      24,738.43$        
Satisfied/Cancelled 2 22 14                   11
Amount 3,289.05$          59,269.06$    11,176.11$    16,883.37$        

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        62,915.41 $73,379.97 293,009.88$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        52,698.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      857,577.61$                       
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            300.00$         -$               -$                   (575.00)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        52,998.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      2,032,702.61$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 8,171.27$          14,087.13$        21,150.43$    8,369.75$      57,646.56$        109,425.14$                       

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        53,136.28$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  53,136.28$                         

3,812,602.65$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  339,676.15$  497,317.64$  2,000,494.96$  -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  8,927,024.91$                    

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 6369 22,386

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 7564 24,358

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    64,656$    258,215$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    33,800$    183,716$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      1,820$      7,175$            

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 16 48                    

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      1,820$      8,827.00$       

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 12.3 11.9 52.000

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 2629 10,504
New taps 4 1 2 0 7

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 55.46 273.39
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 142.79 204.54
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 1.42 2.31
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 79.63 352.21
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 3.72 16.42
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  19,378.60$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

32%

24%0%

42%

2%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     February 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

January 3, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
January 3, 2022 at 6:00 PM in person and by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes and Carol V. Phelps 
were present in person and Commissioner William R. “Bill” Sexton, Jr. joined by ZOOM.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. Commissioner Walker was unable to attend. 
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation and 
Commissioner Phelps lead the Pledge of Allegiance.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Mr. Potter stated that he needed to make a modification to 

the agenda to move Wes Gray to the top of the agenda before the Public Forum so he can leave 
and get to the Washington County School Board meeting (also being held tonight). 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Meeting Minutes from December 6, 2021 and Closed Session 

Minutes from November 1, 2021 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) EIC Community Services Block Grant for 2022 
d) Interlocal Agreement for Building Inspector Services between Washington 

County and the Town of Columbia & subsequent Resolution 
    

Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 DEPARTMENTAL PRESENTATION:  MARTIN-TYRRELL-WASHINGTON HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT:  Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Director gave the following presentation. Mr. Gray said the 
MTW has just reached one (1) year of giving vaccines during the two (2) years of COVID.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 
 Chair Johnson asked for an update on COVID in Washington County.  Mr. Gray went over the 
following information that came out earlier today. 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 Mr. Gray said that the County had its first case of Omicron last week. It will be the dominant 
variant in the next 2 weeks and expect it to peak. More testing sites are catching more cases. However, 
there are no hospitalizations in Washington County as of today. 
 
 Chair Johnson thanked Mr. Gray for all the work that he and his staff put in.  
 
 Mr. Potter asked if the quarantine protocol from the CDC which is at 5 days instead of 10 is what 
he recommends now. Mr. Gray said yes, and then wear a mask for 5 more days.  
 
 PUBLIC FORUM: None. 
 
 PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS ON RE-WRITTEN LAND USE PLAN AND 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT:  Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning Director, spoke to the Board.  
 

“Honorable Commissioners, Residents of Washington County and Fellow Staff Members, 
 

It is an absolute pleasure to speak to you this evening subject of great importance to me: 
the future of Washington County and how development can evolve. 
 

As you may recall, I spoke to you a year ago about GS 160-D and how the NC General 
Assembly combined GS 153 –A and GS 160-A for land development into GS 160-D. 



DRAFT 

As part of 160-D, all governmental units that provide zoning services are required to adopt 
either a Comprehensive Plan or a Land Use Plan prior to June 2022 or cease providing Zoning 
services. 
 

With that said, I make the following presentation to you. Based upon the population 
decrease patterns and trends within Washington Country, I made a proposal before the Planning 
Board to simplify the Comprehensive Plan to a more manageable form.  It is with that proposal 
that the Planning Board developed what I believe to be a Land Use Plan that will evolve with 
future growth in Washington County.  Please consider this Plan as modeling clay or a canvas to 
an artist. 

 
An up-to-date Land Use Plan is important because although Washington County is 

continuing to lose population, the number of residential units in the County continue to grow. 
Because the County faces many environmental considerations that impact growth and 
development, wise development of the land is imperative to future success.  Additionally, 
developing a Land Use Plan ensures development occurs in a manner that is consistent with the 
preservation of the County’s resources and protection of the natural landscape. Also, in 
preparing a Land Use Plan, the County considers increased resource and infrastructure 
demands that could result from an influx of visitors, residents, and businesses entering the 
County as a result of transportation projects like the Highway 64 corridor or from the 
waterfront/waterside development rapidly occurring along the shores of the Albemarle Sound 
and its tributaries. The overall purpose of the Land Use Plan is to encourage the development of 
a safe, healthy, and economically sound living environment for the citizens of the County. 

 
A Land Use Plan is not regulations or laws. It is guidance for regulations and quasi-

judicial decisions. The Planning Board and I feel that this Land Use Plan will lead elected 
officials and staff of Washington County into a developed future of growth.  According to the NC 
School of Government, a simple Land Use Plan is more conducive to growth than a complex one.  

 
I will summarize this Land Use Plan with the Goals and Plan of Action: 
 

 Study existing ordinances to find most effective way to provide for the growth in the 
county 
 

 Maintain drainage system. 
• Follow-up with DOT about maintenance of right of way drainage 
• Work with property owners to find ways to maintain drainage flow from property 

 Flooding 
• Research flooding in eastern part of county and make recommendations for 

funding and/or solutions 
• Meet with stakeholders in flooding areas to discuss issues 

 Protect natural resources 
• Follow best management practices (BMP) for development 
• Provide screening and buffers for wildlife and run off drainage in future 

development 

I am available for your questions before you hold the public hearing for this Plan.” 



DRAFT 

 Commissioner Keyes asked if Mr. Pittman could give some examples of the changes that 
were made. She knows that the previous plan was a large document. Mr. Pittman said there were 
things in there that were not related to Land-Use that were removed. The State is asking the 
County to look at suitable usage for the soil.  Mr. Pittman went on to say that his assignment was 
to “SIMPLIFY” the Plan, and take out details which were not workable.  As one example in the 
class, they said ”don’t tell me houses have to be 3,000 square feet in that subdivision; tell me if it 
is suitable for building houses, and whether there is infrastructure to support what you say it is 
suitable for.” 
 
 Commissioner Keyes asked about the items that dealt with money.  Mr. Pittman said yes the old 
Plan had info in it about beach access, boat ramps, etc.  
 
 Mr. Pittman said this is an Advisory Plan.  Commissioner Keyes asked if Emergency 
Operations is addressed in another plan.  Mr. Pittman said yes it is. Mr. Pittman went on to say 
the old Plan had guidelines and goals for other things such as EM and Fire Departments. Those 
goals do not belong in a Land Use Plan. 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked if the 20 page document was the new Plan.  Mr. Pittman said yes it 
is. It does not address Zoning issues and it’s totally different from the previous Plan. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps said he looks forward to any assistance with drainage down his way.  
 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  RE-WRITTEN LAND USE PLAN:  Commissioner Keyes made the 
motion to open the public hearing on the re-written Land Use Plan.  Commissioner Phelps                   
seconded.  
  
 Commissioner Sexton said he would like to recess this hearing and vote on it at the budget 
workshop meeting on January 24.  Mr. Potter asked that it be put on the February meeting agenda 
instead.   Commissioner Phelps made the motion to recess this public hearing on the re-written 
Land Use Plan to February 7, 2022.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded 
with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, 
yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  (QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING) SPECIAL USE PERMIT: 
Mr. Pittman spoke to the Board about the Planning Board’s recommendation for this Special Use 
Permit.  On November 18, 2021, the Washington County Planning Board held a public hearing 
on the matter of Stephanie Beasley-Walston who provided an application for a Special Use 
Permit to allow the creation of a home-based beauty salon at 565 Mountain Canal Road in 
Creswell, NC. The Planning Board approved the Special Use, and recommend that the 
application to be forwarded to the Board of Commissioners for final approval. 
 

The application and applicable fees were received in the Planning and Safety office on 
September 13, 2021, and was brought before the Planning Board on October 21, 2021, via 
ZOOM. The Board decided to hold the matter open to a public hearing, and scheduled same on 
November 18, 2021, advertising two consecutive weeks in the Roanoke Beacon. The hearing 
was conducted in conjunction with the regularly scheduled Planning Board meeting, via Zoom, 
on November 18, 2021, with the applicant, Stephanie Beasley-Walston and C. R. Nichols 
present. 



DRAFT 

Based on a motion, a second, and a unanimous vote by a quorum of Planning Board 
members present (Mark Cagle, Mary Barnes, Beth Bradshaw, Katie Walker, David Clifton, 
Chair), it was decided to approve the Special Use Permit, as provided in Article E.A. (Rural Area 
Single Family Detached Residential District), C.s. of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance, 
which allows for a Hair Salon or Barber Shop. Please see the attached copy of the application 
and letter from Ms. Beasley-Walston regarding her need to be close to her home. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
Commissioner Keyes made the motion to open the public hearing to go into a quasi-

judicial hearing on the Special Use Permit filed by Stephanie Beasley-Walston on August 
10th, 2021 seeking a Special Use Permit pursuant to Article 3A Subsection C(s) of the 
Washington County Zoning Ordinance to obtain a permit to use a portion of the subject 
residential property as a hair salon or barber shop.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair 



DRAFT 

Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, 
yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Chair Johnson asked if there was anyone here to speak on behalf of this Special Use 

Permit.  Hearing none, Chair Johnson turned the hearing over to the County Attorney, Mr. Curtis 
Potter. 

 
Mr. Potter read the instructions regarding a quasi-judicial procedure. 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
The Clerk to the Board confirmed that there were no parties and/or witnesses present at 

this hearing. 
 

 
 
Chair Johnson read the abovementioned information on Board Conflicts of Interest and 

asked if any Commissioners had any conflicts of interest.  Commissioner Phelps stated that his 
son is the neighbor of the lady applying for the Special Use Permit and he has no issue with this.  



DRAFT 

Mr. Pittman then stated that he is in receipt of a letter from Commissioner Phelps’ son stating 
this. 

 
At this time, Chair Johnson asked if the Commissioners were they supposed to be sworn 

in for this quasi-judicial hearing.  Mr. Potter said no and it was discussed by staff beforehand to 
reach this conclusion. 

 
Chair Johnson continued with the following: 
 

 
Mr. Pittman said Ms. Beasley-Walston approached his office with her request and he 

informed her she would need a Special Use Permit. It was then taken to the Planning Board and 
was met with no resistance. The Planning Board’s recommendation is to approve this 
recommendation. 

 
Commissioner Keyes asked if Mr. Pittman had statements from the neighbors and Mr. 

Pittman said yes; however, he still needed to reach 1 more. He has three (3) and none of them 
had any negative comments. 

  
Mr. Potter told Mr. Pittman he needs to try and get in touch with the one neighbor who 

hasn’t gotten in touch with yet.   
 
Chair Johnson continued on below: 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
The Board agreed that the proposed Special Use of the subject property generally meets 

the General Standards and Criteria for Special Use Permit Review established under Article 5(B) 
of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance, and the Special Use Permit subject to the 
following special conditions/explanation if applicable:  subject to reaching the one neighbor (K. 
Phelps) and either him agreeing he has no issue with this Special Use Permit or he requests an 
additional public hearing (so he can speak) (in no less than 10 days).  [NOTE: After this Board 
meeting, Mr. Pittman was able to obtain a letter from Mr. Phelps saying he has no issue with this 
Special Use Permit and does not require an additional public hearing.]  
 

Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the Special Use Permit subject to 
the one neighbor, who has not been reached, requesting a public hearing (no less than 10 
days).  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
Chair Johnson continued on: 
 

 
 

Commissioner Sexton made the motion to close the public hearing on the Special 
Use Permit.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR:   Chair Johnson recognized Mr. Louis Boone, 
Maintenance Supervisor, as the Employee of the Year. 
 
 REVIEW OF BIDS FOR RESIDENTIAL SURPLUS PROPERTY:  Mr. Potter spoke to 
the Board regarding the information below. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
Mr. Potter thanked Ms. Collier for all of her work  on this project.  Mr. Potter said he will have to have 
the Town of Plymouth sign a resolution for the property in Plymouth. 
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-02 Accepting and 
Approving the Sale of Real Property Located at 758 Spruill Bridge Road, Creswell, NC and 
111 East Main Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEE SEATS FOR COMMISSIONERS:  Ms. Bennett asked the Board if 
they wished to change any of their seats on any of the Boards or Committees they currently sit on.  The 
only change mentioned was for Commissioner (now Chair) Johnson to replace Commissioner Sexton on 
the Employee of the Quarter Committee. 
 



DRAFT 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  

 

 
 
  



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 



DRAFT 

 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
 

a) Status Update on the Sale/Lease of Veteran’s Field to Pocosin Charter Innovative School 
Mr. Potter said this is going on a year now—due to some legal reasons the County needs 
some help from our state legislation. However, that got put on back burner due to the delay 
in passing the State Budget.  PCI has now said they might like to buy the property outright. 
Mr. Potter said he would have to do a bid process---either sealed bid or upset bid.  
Commissioner Keyes said she is in favor of selling Veteran’s Field to PCI. Mr. Potter 
explained the difference between the sealed bid and upset bid process. The consensus of the 
Board is to go with the 10 day upset bid process.  Mr. Potter will talk with PCI. 

 
b) Status Update on Commerce Building Upset Bid 

Ms. Bennett stated that she received one bid and opened it at 5:00 PM today and it was an 
upset bid of $375,000.  A new notice for public sale of the Commerce Building will be in 
the January 12, 2022 edition of the Roanoke Beacon and sealed bids will be accepted until 
January 24 and opened on that date at 5:00 PM.  The new upset bid amount will need to be 
$393,800. 

 
 Mr. Potter said the County had another email glitch today that was a Microsoft bug called 
Y2K/2022. Staff could not send or receive email. The problem was fixed around 12:30 pm. 
 
 Mr. Potter said that he, Chair Johnson and Ms. Dixon will be spending ½ day tomorrow with the 
school system to interview the 3 finalist firms to do a system-wide study of WCS systems.  There is one 
more seat available for the meeting (for a Commissioner). Mr. Potter needs to know by the end of this 
meeting if one of the Commissioners would like to attend the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Potter noted the following dates: 

 Citizens Academy is on Tuesday January 18 @ 6:00 PM—speakers will be from Tax & 
Water. 

 Budget workshop will be on January 24.  Will need to set a time. 
 Site visit to new Duplin Co. Aviation terminal in the next couple of weeks. 
 Gov Deals surplus auction did not meet the reserve.  Will lower reserve and do again. 

 
 Commissioner Keyes said at the last meeting she was elected as Vice-Chair but feels she can’t 
accept it due to personal obligations and would like to resign. Chair Johnson accepted Commissioner 
Keyes resignation as Vice-Chair and asked for nominations for a new Vice-Chair.  Commissioner 
Keyes made a motion to nominate Commissioner Walker. Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Chair 
Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; 
Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



DRAFT 

Back in Open Session at 7:45 PM with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 
Keyes made a motion to recess the meeting to January 24, 2022 @ 4:00 PM for a Budget 
Work Session in the Commissioners’ Room.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  
Commissioner Sexton (was already disconnected); Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                 Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

             Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

January 24, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
January 24, 2022 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, William R. “Bill” Sexton, 
Jr. and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney 
Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Johnson called the recessed meeting to order.  
 

 BUDGET WORKSESSION:  Mr. Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney went 
over the following FY 23 Budget Workshop Agenda Detailed.  Mr. Potter made note that the 
normal Finance Report was not attached due to a glitch in the software. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

I 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

t 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

Items Discussed:  
 
Item 4. a. ii Discount Program – the consensus of the Board was to continue with this program 
Item 4. a. iii.  Special Drainage/Watershed Improvement Tax – the consensus of the Board was to 
keep this in place 
 
Other Items:   
 
 Emergency Management/Aviation:  Mr. Potter said there is a field trip to Duplin County 
on Wednesday to look at their Public Safety Facility at their airport and possibly going to see one 
in Currituck County.  One main question may be if we are going to include a new 911 center in 
this Public Safety Facility. Commissioner Keyes said we should be able to get a 911 grant.  Mr. 
Potter said we should; however, we have turned down consolidation of 911 and that may be held 
against us. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he has a meeting with Tom Harrison this week to discuss some kind of 
small business “incubator” for the County.  
 

 Discussion ensued on CIP items.  Mr. Potter said he needs guidance from the Board on 
where to spend the ARPA money that we have received (~$2.4M). 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked where would the helicopter pad located.  Commissioner 
Keyes said in Creswell. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the 
Resolution 2022-003 Authorizing Upset Bid Process for the Potential Sale of the Veteran’s 
Field Recreational Property Located at 508 North First Street, Creswell, NC.  
Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
At 6:32 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion 

to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with 
the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, 
yea; Commissioner Walker, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

          Chair        Clerk to the Board 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	2-7-2022 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accts
	Item 1c) Emergency Management Mutual Aid Agreement
	Item 1d) Invitation to Commisisoners Meals on Wheels in March 2022
	Item 1d) Resolution 2022-004 50th Anniversary of the Senior Nutrition Program
	Item 1e) Resolution 2022-005 Black History Month 2022
	2-7-2022 Item 2 (public forum)
	HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM AND/OR PUBLIC HEARING DURING
	COVID-19 AT THE FEBRUARY 7, 2022 WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	2-7-2022 Item 3 Public Hearing (Recessed)-Re-written Land Use Plan
	Item 3 Re-written Land Use Plan
	GS_160D-501 Plans
	Item 3 Land use plan draft 9-9 (002)

	2-7-2022 Item 4 Department Information Update-DSS
	Item 4 DSS overview
	DSS  �by program
	Slide Number 2
	Food and nutrition services
	Child care assistance 
	Low Income Household energy assistance program�(liheap)
	Child support Enforcement 
	Riverlight Transit
	ADULT SERVICES 
	ADULT SERVICES CON’T 
	Child protective services
	Permanency Planning 
	Administrative unit
	Administrative unit con’t
	Medicaid unit
	Medicaid audit presentation�
	Medicaid audits�reda
	REDA results letter
	Medicaid audits�single county audit�fy 2020-2021
	Request for reclassification to avoid permanency planning crisis�
	Current staffing crisis with permanency planning
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22

	2-7-2022 Item 5 Tax Collector's Report
	Item 5 Tax Collector's Settlement Report
	2-7-2022 Item 6 Approval of Budget Guidelines
	Item 6 Budget Officer Guidelines FY23 For Board Approval v20220203
	2-7-2022 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	2-7-2022 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Item 8 Budget Transfers and Amendments
	Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	2-7-20221 Item 9 Other Items
	Item 9 DH Reports for 2-7-22 BoC Meeting
	Call to Order
	Additions/Deletions to the Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Medicaid Presentation:
	Director Informational Items

	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	Item 9 FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Sheriff's Office
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	 Tax
	Utilities

	2-7-2022 Item 10 Closed Session
	1-3-2022 minutes
	1-24-2022 minutes - Budget Worksession



